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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
55 2

HK$ Million, except otherwise stated
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETHEWMES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”), | am
pleased to present the annual results of China Healthcare Enterprise Group
Limited (formerly known as Telefield International (Holdings) Limited)(the
“Company”), and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2015 (the “Year”).

During the latest financial year, the Group experienced a significant
change in the direction that it will take in the near future. Power Port
Holdings Limited completed the acquisition of interests in the Company
on November 2015 and become the controlling shareholder of the Group,
opening a new chapter in the Group’s development. While we will continue
to develop the Electronic Manufacturing Services (“EMS”) business, which
remains the principle revenue driver of the Group, our pursuits will expand
to healthcare related business. We are confident in the ability of the Group
to make its mark in an industry that holds enormous opportunities and is
expected to continue growing by leaps and bounds in the coming years.

The healthcare industry is expected to grow and China still has significant
room for growth given its relatively low healthcare expenditure per capita.
And such growth is expected to come from the rising affluence of
consumers who demand high-quality health care, whether in the form of
products or services. Moreover, the rapidly aging population will invariably
require greater medical attention as well. Yet another growth driver is the
rising incidences of chronic disease in China due to pollution and changing
diets. All of these factors will spur healthcare expenditure.

While the vast opportunities presented by China’s healthcare sector is
appealing, we certainly realise that it is important to keep our feet on the
ground and establish prudent steps for tackling this immense market.
Such steps do not preclude efforts to bolster the EMS business, which we
see has the potential to complement our healthcare business. Indeed, with
the new two-child policy announced in late-October 2015 following the
13th Five-Year Plan (2016-20), here too are opportunities that the EMS
business can potentially benefit from. Aside from the distribution of
business phone systems under the RCA brand, we can capitalise on the
Group’s ability to develop specialised products to explore new frontiers.
Hence, while the Guangzhou facilities will continue to manufacture
electronic consumer products, beauty consumer products, home
appliances and appliance control units, there is the capacity and flexibility
to do much more.

BERER

AANRARKES (B ([ESEREE
ERFEXEEARAR(GIEDZEREZERSE
BRABR(ARAD) REKBAR (Gl AEE])
BE_Z-—AFt_A=+—RALFE(LXF
BDZ2FEE -

R — A REE - XEEFHRTABERE
K g 2 & o Power Port Holdings Limited /A — &
—RAF+—AEKKRBEARRRER - WKALE
ERERRE  AAEEHEREBAT—B - &
EEREE FTRERBEY  HNRAREE
EBREIOR - R BPIEEEREBEAZE
%o BMBELAREBRARBENEERL
— BN RITEMBEE - TEHRRREFEE
SREER -

RBITRBEME IR - ENPENERAER
] ARABREBRASAHEE - BEOEEE
MEEMERBEFER  REYELRRER
MBI BRI - I - AOZRELBAETR
FREEFN - PREISAHENARR B ENE -
SERMRBEREM - e m— R - Ll
FrERZDESREFRX -

B ARE SRR P B BEAE - IETFIR A
RIEE M - b R RV BEAT IS HAM &
B BRI EBRERE FRERBES
BRRREAENARAREERS - BA - BB
ET=ARFHAE(E-—RE_ZF)R_Z
—HFE+AEFBMHOMZBR T HREE - B
TRERBEHA LTS - FROHRCARE
MEBERE RGN RATEEAREFEEZM
EmNENARRHIA - At - BMERER &

EUEETHBES ERNBES  RAES
RESEHES B2 ZRIEDEEER
EEHATREE SR -

Annual Report G 2015



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETREMES

As the Group begins a new chapter of development, | wish to take this
opportunity to extend a word of appreciation to my fellow Directors,
management and staff for their diligence and trust, thus enabling this
transitional period to proceed seamlessly. | am confident that with their
ongoing support, and the support of our customers, suppliers and business
partners, the Group will proceed on a new path of growth.

Gong Shaoxiang
Chairman
22 March 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEE R M AT

During the past year, the United States (“USA”) economy showed stable
growth and unemployment rate at a level considered effectively full
employment. Such progress duly convinced the Federal Reserve to
achieve “liftoff” in December 2015, raising the benchmark federal-funds
rate by a quarter-percentage point after seven years of near zero interest.
In contrast, the European economy remained fragile, plagued by high
unemployment — 10.7% in October 2015 — and slow growth, with the 19
countries within the Eurozone achieving an annualized growth rate of only
1.5% according to European Central Bank forecasts. The second largest
economy in the world also realised lacklustre growth, with GDP expanding
by 6.9% in 2015, the lowest in 25 years. With most major economies
remaining weak, the US dollar has only strengthened in value. The weak
Euro consequently affected the Group’s profit, though the EMS business
has continued to perform encouragingly despite the volatile conditions.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group recorded revenue of
HK$1,008.6 million (2014: HK$1,033.0 million). Gross profit amounted to
HK$212.1 million versus HK$225.5 million in 2014. Loss attributable to
owners of the Company amounted to HK$1.8 million (2014: profit of
HK$0.6 million).

The Group remains in a solid financial position, which reflects the
management’s commitment to prudent financial administration. As at 31
December 2015, the Group had bank balances and cash totalling HK$441.2
million. To retain sufficient capital for future business development, the
Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

Review of Operations

As the foundation of the Group, the EMS business and distribution
business, revenue of phone systems under the RCA brand of the
distribution business provide a stable source of revenue. Though the
customers’ integration during the year weakened the performance on
distribution business and cautious restocking practices during the first half
year impacted on the performance of the EMS business — the result of
customers’ concerns over global economic developments — such restraint
was less severe during the remaining year, due in part to seasonality and
owing to the Group’s ongoing and successful efforts at adjusting the
product portfolio to suit the requirements of its customers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Geographical Analysis &5 AT
Revenue by Country
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With regards to revenue based on geographical region, total revenue from
major European countries (United Kingdom, Switzerland, France and
Poland) amounted to HK$411.3 million (2014: HK$381.3 million), thus
accounting for 41% of the Group’s total revenue. The People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) (including Hong Kong) represented the second largest
market for the Group, with HK$213.2 million (2014: HK$270.0 million) in
revenue generated during the Year, accounting for 21% of the Group’s
total revenue. The United States and Others recorded revenue of HK$181.9
million (2014: HK$189.5 million) and HK$202.1 million (2014: HK$192.1
million) respectively, representing 18% and 20% of the Group’s total
revenue for the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group recorded total revenue
of HK$1,008.6 million (2014: HK$1,033.0 million) from the continuing
operations.

The Group’s reporting segments are strategic business units that offer
different products and services. There are two broad groups of business
units for segment accounting purpose, including EMS segment and
distribution of communication products (“Distribution”) segment. In EMS
segment, there are also two main groups of products, namely
communication and non-communications products whereas non-
communication products mainly include appliances and appliances control
products and multimedia products.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the revenue from EMS slightly
increased by 1.8% to HK$917.3 million (2014: HK$900.7 million), whereas
the revenue from Distribution segment decreased by 30.9% to HK$91.3
million (2014: HK$132.2 million).

The increase in the revenue generated from EMS segment was mainly
attributable to the increase in revenue resulting mainly from the beauty
care products of HK$24.5 million and multimedia products of HK$46.8
million but offsetting by the decrease in revenue generated from
communication products of HK$64.2 million (2014: HK$157.9 million).

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales slightly decreased by 1.4% from HK$807.5 million in 2014 to
HK$796.5 million in 2015 corresponded to the level of revenue of the Year.

Gross Profit

Gross profit decreased by 5.9% from HK$225.5 million to HK$212.1 million,
while the gross profit margin remained stable at 21.0% (2014: 21.8%). The
gross profit was contributed by the EMS segment of 88.2% (2014: 81.3 %)
and distribution business of 11.8% (2014:18.7 %).

Other income

The level of other income remained relatively stable at HK$13.7 million
(2014: HK$15.9 million) for continuing units comparing to last year. The
major components of the other income are represented by bank interest
of HK$1.8 million (2014: HK$1.0 million) and gain on derivative financial
assets or liabilities of HK$7.1 million (2014: HK$9.1 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R Mo

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses of HK$55.4 million (2014: HK$65.9
million) accounted for approximately 5.5% in 2015 and 6.4% in 2014 of the
Group’s revenue respectively. The decrease is mainly caused by the
decrease in advertising campaign and marketing expenses of HK$6.6
million and reduction of staff cost of HK$1.4 million comparing with last
year.

Administration expenses

Administration expenses of HK$76.6 million (2014: HK$75.3 million)
remained at a steady level and accounted for approximately 7.6% in 2015
and 7.3% in 2014 of the Group’s revenue respectively.

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses increased by 21.4% from HK$36.0 million in 2014
to HK$43.7 million in 2015. The increase was mainly attributable to the
increasing level on allowance of receivables and bad debt written off of
HK$4.9 million, and the impairment loss of intangible assets of HK$3.5
million.

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs mainly comprise interest payments for the
Group’s bank loans, import/export loans, factoring charges and implicit
interest on financial liabilities. The Group’s finance costs were
approximately HK$6.1 million in 2015 and HK$7.5 million in 2014,
represented approximately 0.6% and 0.7% of the revenue in 2015 and 2014
respectively.

Income tax expense

The Group’s income tax expense represents amounts of income tax paid
by the Group, at the applicable tax rates in accordance with the relevant
laws and regulations in Hong Kong, the PRC, the USA and Japan. The
Group had no tax payable in other jurisdictions during the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2015.

The Group’s effective income tax rates remained steady for the years

ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 were approximately 12.6% and 14.7%,
respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Discontinued operations

On 22 May 2015, the Company entered into the disposal agreement (the
“Disposal Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company has agreed to sell
the equity interests of a group of subsidiaries and associates (the
“Disposal”) to Dragon Fortune International Limited (the “Dragon
Fortune”), a former controlling shareholder of the Company, at a
consideration of HK$169,800,000. The Disposal was completed on 7
October 2015. The loss for the year from discontinued operation was
HK$79.4 million (2014: HK$89.4 million).

(Loss)/Profit attributable to owners of the Company

The loss attributable to owners of the Company is of HK$1.8 million (2014
profit HK$0.6 million). The Group’s net (loss)/profit margin attributable to
owners of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2015 was -0.1%
(2014: +0.1%).

Loss for the year attributable to non-controlling interests

Loss for the year attributable to non-controlling interests amounts to
HK$39.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: HK$42.9
million). The decrease in the loss was primarily caused by the disposal of
major loss making distribution business units during the Year.

The Group generally finances its operations and capital expenditure by
internally generated cashflows and the proceeds from the Company’s
initial public offering in January 2011.

As at 31 December 2015, the bank balances and cash amounted to
HK$441.2 million, representing an increase of HK$255.4 million from 2014.
Respective sum of 5.4%, 9.1% and 85.4% of the bank balances and cash
was denominated in RMB, US dollars and HK dollars and others 0.1% was
denominated in various currencies.

The Group’s current ratio remains in a healthy position at 2.66 times (2014:
1.30 times).

There is no interest-bearing bank borrowing as at 31 December 2015. As at
31 December 2014, the total interest-bearing bank borrowings were
HK$117.1 million, comprised primarily of bank loans and overdrafts and
import/export loans.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R Mo

On 9 November 2015, the Company entered into a placing agreement with
Kingston Securities Limited as the placing agent for the placing of up to
79,700,000 shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company at
the placing price of HK$2.44 per placing share (the “Placing”). The placing
price represents a discount of approximately 19.74% to the closing price of
HK$3.04 per share as quoted on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 6 November 2015. The Company
intended to use the total net proceeds for any potential investments in the
future and general working capital of the Group.

The Placing was completed on 27 November 2015 and an aggregate of
79,700,000 placing shares were allotted and issued to not less than six
investors, who and their respective ultimate beneficial owners are
individual investors, being third parties independent of the Company and
its connected persons. The aggregate nominal value of the placing shares
issued was HK$194.47 million. The net proceeds from the Placing,
approximately HK$189.46 million, representing a net issue price of
approximately HK$2.38 per placing share, have been reserved for potential
investments and general working capital of the Group.

Cash flow

In 2015, HK$15.4 million and HK$98.8 million were generated from the
operating activities and financing activities respectively, whilst HK$194.0
million was used in investing activities. Net cash inflow from financing
activities was mainly related to the proceeds from placing of HK$189.5
million offset by the repayment of bank loans of HK$140.1 million. Net cash
outflow in investing activities was mainly arising from the disposal of
subsidiaries of HK$153.0 million offset by the HK$334 million placed in the
margin account of brokerage firm.

Exchange risk exposure

The Group mitigates its foreign exchange rate risk through the use of
derivative financial instruments. The Group primarily enters into foreign
currency forward contracts to reduce the effects of fluctuating foreign
currency exchange rates, in particular, the exchange rate between Euro
and HK dollars as well as exchange rate between US dollars and RMB. The
Group categorizes these instruments as being entered into for purposes
other than trading.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had forwards contacts of fair value of
approximately of HK$0.8 million. The contract amount of the forward
contracts is HK dollars equivalent of 26.2 million (equivalent to EUR3
million).
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Capital expenditure

Capital expenditure for 2015 amounted to HK$21.8 million and capital
commitments as at 31 December 2015 amounted to HK$0.4 million. Both
the capital expenditure and capital commitments were mainly related to
the acquisition of plant and machinery and leasehold improvements to
cope with the increase in business volume.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2014 and 2015, none of the Group’s assets was pledged.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had an outstanding guarantee (“the
Guarantee”) to one of the suppliers of an oversea subsidiary (“Disposed
Subsidiary”), which was disposed under the Disposal, for payment in
relationship to a sum of HKD equivalent $20.3 million (USD2.6 million)
representing a trade balance under dispute between the Disposed
Subsidiary and the supplier. The Disposed Subsidiary had issued counter
guarantee to the Company to indemnify the Company for any loss in
relation to the Guarantee. Apart from the above, the Group and Company
did not have any significant contingent liabilities.

Acquisitions, disposals and significant investment

On 22 May 2015, the Company entered into the Disposal Agreement,
pursuant to which the Company has agreed to sell the equity interests of a
group of subsidiaries and associates to Dragon Fortune, a former
controlling shareholder of the Company, at a consideration of
HK$169,800,000. The Disposal was completed on 7 October 2015.

Apart from the aforesaid transaction, there was no material acquisition,
disposal or investment by the Group.

Human resources

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had approximately 2,400 employees in
various operating units located Hong Kong, USA, and PRC. In order to
attract and retain high quality talents to ensure smooth operation and
cater for the Group’s constant expansion, it offers competitive
remuneration packages, with reference to market conditions and individual
qualifications and experience.

Nevertheless, there is no share option scheme put in place as at 31
December 2015.
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As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintaining the
highest environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable
development of its business. The Group has complied with all relevant
laws and regulations in relation to its business including health and safety,
workplace conditions, employment and the environment. The Group
understands a better future depends on everyone’s participation and
contribution. It has encouraged employees, customers, suppliers and other
stakeholders to participate in environmental and social activities which
benefit the community as a whole. The Group maintains strong
relationships with its employees, has enhanced cooperation with its
suppliers and has provided high quality products and services to its
customers so as to ensure sustainable development.

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the mainland China while the Company itself is listed on the
Stock Exchange. Our establishment and operations accordingly shall
comply with relevant laws and regulations in the mainland China and Hong
Kong. During the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to the date of this
report, we have complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in the
mainland China and Hong Kong.

Our Group’s financial condition, results of operations, and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties directly
or indirectly pertaining to our Group’s businesses. The followings are the
key risks and uncertainties identified by our Group. There may be other
risks and uncertainties in addition to those shown below which are not
known to our Group or which may not be material now but could turn out
to be material in the future.

Market Risks

Market risk is the risk that deteriorates profitability or affects ability to
meet business objectives arising from the movement in market prices, like
foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices. The management
of our Group manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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Foreign Exchange Rates Risk

As our Group’s transactions were mainly conducted in HK dollars, US
dollars, RMB and Euro, in view of the potential RMB and Euro exchange
rate fluctuations, the Group uses derivative financial instruments to
mitigate its risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations. The use of
financial derivatives has been closely monitored by management of the
Company. The Group would choose financial institutions with high credit
rating as counter party when using derivative financial instruments. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of other foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The
Group monitors its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Interest Rate Risk

For interest-sensitive products and investments, our Group analyses its
interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis and considers managing this
risk in a cost-effective manner when appropriate, through variety of
means.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the potential that our Group will be unable to meet its
obligations when they fall due because of an inability to obtain adequate
funding or liquidate assets. In managing liquidity risk, our Group monitors
cash flows and maintains an adequate level of cash and cash equivalent to
ensure the ability to finance the Group’s operations and reduce the effects
of fluctuation in cash flows.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people and systems or from external events.
Responsibility for managing operational risks basically rests with every
function at divisional and departmental levels. Key functions in our Group
are guided by their standard operating procedures, limits of authority and
reporting framework. Our management will identify and assess key
operational exposures regularly so that appropriate risk response can be
taken.

Manpower and Retention Risk

Our Group may face the risk of not being able to attract and retain key
personnel and talents with appropriate and required skills, experience and
competence which would meet the business objectives of our Group. Our
Group will provide attractive remuneration package to suitable candidates
and personnel.
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The global economy is expected to remain in the doldrums as a variety of
financial and political concerns will continue to influence governments and
societies around the world, which in turn will have a knock-on effect on
various industries. Despite such concerns, the management is optimistic
about the Group’s long-term prospects given its efforts to chart a new
course of development.

While establishing this new development path, the management is well
aware that first and foremost, strengthening the foundation on which to
pursue fresh opportunities is paramount. Hence, it remains committed to
building the EMS business, which the management believes still possesses
room for growth. To better address the needs of prominent international
consumer electronic brands, the management will seek to enhance the
existing line of communication and non-communication products. In
respect of the former, this will include tapping Voice over Internet Protocol
technology, extending to digital Business Telephone System. In view of
the outstanding flexibility of the manufacturing facilities in Guangzhou, the
management will also look at opportunities for capitalising on its
capabilities.

The Company is in the preliminary stage of reviewing and considering the
feasibility of certain projects which are principally engaged in the medical
and healthcare industry. Given China’s healthcare expenditure was only
accounting for 5.6% of China’s GDP in 2013 and is estimated to rise and
projected to surpass the US$1 trillion mark by year 2020, it is clear that
participants in the healthcare sector will continue to have encouraging
room for growth over the long term with current comparatively low
healthcare expenditure per capita by developed country standard.
Together with other positive developments in China, including the new
two-child policy announced in late-October 2015 following the 13th Five-
Year Plan (2016-20) in October 2015, tremendous demand from an
increasingly affluent population that insists on quality healthcare products
and services and rising incidences of chronic disease will likely to drive
significant growth in the healthcare industry in China in the coming years.

As the management begins to align the Group to better capture
opportunities in the healthcare industry, it will be doing so while also
leveraging the many resources and strengths that have underpinned the
Group’s development over the years. The management fully recognises
the importance of learning from the past, yet at the same time is
committed to building a better future for the Group and its stakeholders.

The Company will continue to explore and consider any other investment
and business opportunities that may arise in the market from time to time
that the Company considers value-enhancing to shareholders of the
Company and/or otherwise in the best interest of the Company and its
subsidiaries.
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The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to protect the interests of the shareholders of the Company.

The Directors are of the opinion that the Company has complied with the
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
under Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31
December 2015, except for the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the
Code as described below.

Code Provision A.2.1

Under code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separated and should not be performed by the
same individual. The Company does not have any officer with the title of
“chief executive officer” and this is deviated from the code provision A.2.1
of the Code.

During the period 1 January 2015 to 3 November 2015, Mr. Cheng Han
Ngok, Steve (“Mr. Cheng”), who acted as the Chairman and an Executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Cheng has resigned on 4 November 2015.

Mr. Gong Shaoxiang, who acts as the Chairman and an Executive Director
of the Company since 4 November 2015, is also responsible for overseeing
the general operations of the Group. The Board will meet regularly to
consider major matters affecting the operations of the Group. The Board
considers that this structure will not impair the balance of power and
authority between the Board and the management of the Group. The roles
of the respective executive directors and senior management, who are in
charge of different functions complement the role of the chairman and
chief executive officer. The Board believes that this structure is conducive
to strong and consistent leadership enabling the Group to operate
efficiently.

The Company understands the importance to comply with the code
provision A.2.1 and will continue to consider the feasibility to comply with
the said code provision. If compliance with the said provision is
determined, appropriate persons will be nominated to assume the
different roles of chairman and chief executive officer.

Code Provision A.6.7

Under code Provision A.6.7. of the Code, independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors, as equal board members,
should give the board and any committees on which they serve the benefit
of their skills, expertise and varied backgrounds and qualifications through
regular attendance and active participation. They should also attend
general meetings and develop balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. Dr. Xue Quan, the Independent Non-executive Director, did
not attend the extraordinary general meeting held on 25 September 2015
due to other business engagement.
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The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code”) as the required standard for securities transactions by
Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries of all Directors and all
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions throughout the year ended 31 December 2015 and
up to the date of this annual report.

The Board currently comprises two Executive Directors, one Non-
executive Director and three Independent Non-executive Directors. The
three Independent Non-executive Directors account for more than one-
third of the Board. The composition of the Board is set out as follows:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Gong Shaoxiang (Chairman)
Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Cao Yuyun

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Bao Jingiao

Mr. Wong Chun Hung

Mr. Leung Pok Man

The biographical details of the Directors are disclosed in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors” on pages 29 to 30 in this annual
report. The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and
experiences appropriate to the requirements of the businesses of the
Group and to exercise of independence and is well balanced. Each of the
Directors has relevant expertise and extensive corporate and strategic
planning experiences that may contribute to the business of the Group.
The Company has complied with the requirements under Rule 3.10(1) and
(2) of the Listing Rules since the Listing Date. All Independent Non-
executive Directors also meet the guidelines for assessment of their
independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Functions of the Board

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs of the
Company. The Board’s primary duty is to ensure the viability of the
Company and to ensure that it is managed in the best interests of the
shareholders as a whole while taking into account the interests of other
stakeholders. The Group has adopted internal guidelines in setting forth
matters that require the Board’s approval. Apart from its statutory
responsibilities, the Board approves the Group’s strategic plan, key
operational initiatives, major investments and funding decisions. It also
reviews the Group’s financial performance, identifies principal risks of the
Group’s business and ensures implementation of appropriate systems to
manage these risks. Daily business operations and administrative functions
of the Group are delegated to the management.

Board Meetings and Procedures

Board members were provided with complete, adequate and timely
information to allow them to fulfill their duties properly. In compliance
with code provision A.1.3 of the Code, at least 14 days’ notice has been
given for a regular Board meeting to give all Directors an opportunity to
attend. Notice, agenda and board papers of regular Board meetings are
sent to all Directors within reasonable time and at least 3 days prior to the
meetings. Directors are free to contribute and share their views at
meetings and major decisions will only be taken after deliberation at Board
meetings. Directors who are considered having conflict of interests or
material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to be discussed
will not be counted in the quorum of meeting and will abstain from voting
on the relevant resolutions. Full minutes are prepared after the meetings
and the draft minutes are sent to all Directors for their comment on the
final version of which are endorsed in the subsequent Board meeting.

All Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed for a fixed
term. Every Director is subject to re-election on retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company. The Company
has received from each of the Independent Non-executive Directors an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and still considers the Independent Non-executive Directors
to be independent as at the date of this annual report.

EEERE

EERRBEARREBREBNEE - EFEW
IZRERERADRNGFENL - SWHEREAR
ARRERRENRFASBEREMERTE AR

ST AERE - AEBEERAAIES] - FIHTE
REFEWAENER - RATEMEIN EFEH
FEARBRREETE  BHEERE  TERE

REERE - HTAERIAEEHT BRI - %
RBAEEXBNEARARALBREESEHEE
TERRR - AEE R R RN EERITHEEE

BIREEERIE -

EEEEBNRER

SFEgREBIEMHTE THOMRBHER - A
BRERTERSR - *E?J%#Q'JZ#EIJMK%A 13
FzHE EFRAMRMNTERAZEEDL 4
BA - NEMBESHELE - ﬁf’ﬁ%%@“ 7
SHmBE fi%‘%&ﬁ#ﬂﬁé\;%ﬁﬁéi%ﬁ%?aﬁw
(BZD=ZRANBEETHEES - EFEATNE
FeR MENEXNRKYALEES SR

ER=E:1 éﬂt

WRITRE - EEMEERERR HEHELF W
%Iﬁ,ﬁ&iﬁj q] iij{%lj ’ Q‘JT\/E ﬁ-l-)\ﬁz//\
SEAETAS T

SHERRERERE -8
BARHEHECTE  BERARE2BESEFE &
RERANBRESS SR LEL -

ERBYFRTESFNESHEREEMES - ﬂ?‘dﬁé
ARRIMABERAR  BREFHEARES

I R IEAE $’&ETETxxm?543E$ﬂTT§$$E
BETRAEIZHREXNFERRE  BRE

BN o RRBRAFEHRARDRIBILIFNITE
ERBUM -

Annual Report G 2015



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
DEEARE

Number of meetings attended/held

HESEHE BHRYERYE
Annual general Extraordinary Board
meeting meeting meeting
Name of member BRBERE BRI EEegR
Executive Directors: HITESE -
Mr. Gong Shaoxiang (Chairman) ZOERE(FE)
(appointed on 4 November 2015) (R—Z=—A%F
+—AmBEEZRT) 0/0 0/0 Il
Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua TEESE
(appointed on 4 November 2015) (R—Z=—A%F
+—AMBEZRT) 0/0 0/0 /1
Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve (Chairman) BT A (£)E)
(resigned on 4 November 2015) (R=ZE—RF
+— AN B&HT) /1 /1 10/10
Mr. Poon Ka Lee Barry ERFEE
(resigned on 4 November 2015) (R=ZE—RF
+— AN B&HT) /1 /1 10/10
Mr. Ng Kim Yuen REREE
(resigned on 4 November 2015) (R=ZE—RF
+— AN B&HT) /1 /1 10/10
Ms. Fok Pui Yin EME Lzt
(resigned on 4 November 2015) (R=ZE—RF
+— AN B&HT) /1 /1 10/10
Mr. Lee Kai Bon TUEFH T E
(resigned on 4 November 2015) (R=ZE—RF
+— AN B&HT) /1 /1 10/10
Non-executive Director: HMITESE -
Mr. Cao Yuyun ER=EE
(appointed on 4 November 2015) (R=ZE—A%F
+—AMBEZRT) 0/0 0/0 /1
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUIHHTESE -
Mr. Bao Jingiao B EE
(appointed on 4 November 2015) (RZZT—hF
+—AmBEEZRT) 0/0 0/0 il
Mr. Wong Chun Hung ML
(appointed on 4 November 2015) (RZT—hF
+—AmBEEZRT) 0/0 0/0 1/1
Mr. Leung Pok Man RIE X
(appointed on 4 November 2015) (R=ZZT—AF
+—AmBEEZRT) 0/0 0/0 1/1
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter Bifs R B EE
(resigned on 4 November 2015) (R—E—LF
+— AN B &) 1/1 /1 10/10
Dr. Xue Quan BRI
(resigned on 4 November 2015) (R-ZE—XLF
+— AN B &) /1 o/ 10/10
Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent BAmAaiELT
(resigned on 4 November 2015) (R=—ZE—H%F
+— AW AFE) 11 /1 9/10
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Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Newly appointed Directors are provided with necessary induction and
information to ensure that they have a proper understanding of the
Company’s business and operations, as well as awareness of Director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the Code, the Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills, so as to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant. The Directors committed to
participating in appropriate continuous professional development
activities by way of attending training or reading materials relevant to the
Company’s business or to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities. During
the year ended 31 December 2015, the Directors have been provided with
regular updates on the Company’s performance, position and prospects to
enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.
The Directors are also briefed on the latest development and changes in
the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory requirements from time to
time. All directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development programmes to develop and refresh their professional
knowledge and skills. All the existing Directors confirmed that they have
had suitable directors’ training through attendance of training courses and
seminars; or reading materials to refresh their knowledge and skills during
the Year.

There is no service contract between the Company and each of the newly
appointed Directors on 4 November 2015. Mr. Cao Yuyun, Mr. Bao Jingiao,
Mr Wong Chun Hung and Mr. Leung Pok Man are appointed for a fixed
term of three years commencing from 4 November 2015.

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association of the
Company, at each annual general meeting, at least one third of the
Directors are required to retire from office by rotation. Each Director shall
retire from office at least once every three years and shall include those
who have been longest in office since their last election or re-election.

In accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, new Directors appointed by the Board during the year shall
retire and submit themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting
immediately following their appointments.
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The Board has established specific committees, namely the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, with
written terms of reference to assist them in the efficient implementation of
their functions. Specific responsibilities have been delegated to the above
committees.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses.

The Board shall establish other committees for specific purposes from
time to time to facilitate the Company’s operations.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 31 December 2010
During the period from 1 January 2015 to 4 November 2015, the Audit
Committee had three members comprising three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent (Chairman), Mr.
Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter and Dr. Xue Quan. On 4 November 2015, they
resigned as members of the Audit Committee. On the same date, Mr.
Wong Chun Hung was appointed as the Chairman of the Audit Committee
whereas Mr. Bao Jingiao and Mr. Leung Pok Man were appointed as the
member of the Audit Committee.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2015, the composition and
members of the Audit Committee complies with the requirements under
Rules 3.21 of the Listed Rules.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal control system of
the Group. The written terms of reference which describes the authority
and duties of the Audit Committee have been revised by the Board on 24
February 2016 to conform to the provisions of the Revised Code, a copy of
which is posted to the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The works performed by the Audit Committee in 2015 included the
following:

. to review the financial results and reports;

. to review the reports from external auditors, management letters
and management response;
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. to review the matters in relation to internal audit and the
effectiveness of the internal control system;

. to review the Group’s compliance with statutory and regulatory
requirements;

. to review corporate governance matters; and
. to review the re-appointment of the external auditors.

The details of meetings held by the Audit Committee during 2015 and the
individual attendance of each member is set out below:

. HEEBMASEFRANSPEERRE R
MEH:

- ERAEEETEEREERENER

EHEEERTEHE &

EHIMBRBEINEREE -

BERZEEN T RFAMAZERFBEREX
SR ERHER#INT

Number of meetings

attended/held
Name of member HESEHE BHRYERYE
Mr. Wong Chun Hung (Chairman) HIAM L ()
(appointed on 4 November 2015) (R—ZE—HF+—ANBEERT) 0/0
Mr. Bao Jingiao ST E
(appointed on 4 November 2015) (R=ZZE—ARF+—AMNAEZE) 0/0
Mr. Leung Pok Man P
(appointed on 4 November 2015) (R=—Z=—RHE+—ANBEZT) 0/0
Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent (Chairman) Bt (EE)
(resigned on 4 November 2015) (R=ZE—RF+—ANAET) 4/4
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter iz RB LA
(resigned on 4 November 2015) (R=ZF—RF+— AEAFT) 4/4
Dr. Xue Quan (resigned on 4 November 2015) B R{E+
(RZZE—RF+—AEART) 4/4
The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2015 have ARGEHEZE-ZT—HF+_-_A=+—HILFED
been reviewed by the Audit Committee. FEEFECLEERZESHETER -
Remuneration Committee FMEEE
The Remuneration Committee was established on 31 December 2010. ARFR-ZE—ZTF+_A=+—HRIFMHE
During the period from 1 January 2015 to 4 November 2015, the B®€ -R-_E—HAF—A—HZEZE-ZT—HF+—

Remuneration Committee comprised one Executive Director, namely, Mr.
Cheng Han Ngok Steve, and three Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter (Chairman), Dr. Kwan Pun Fong
Vincent and Dr. Xue Quan. They resigned as members of the
Remuneration Committee with effect from 4 November 2015.

AMBHRE - FMEESh - BRTEETBER
KT UR=2FIUFNITES - DHIREEE

BEL(ERE) BmATELRERBLEK - R
“T-RFT—ANBE  HEREFMEEEK

\
”

Annual Report %k 2015

23



24

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERARE

On 4 November 2015, Mr. Bao Jingiao was appointed as the Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee whereas Mr. Wong Chun Hung and Mr.
Leung Pok Man were appointed as the member of the Remuneration
Committee.

The Remuneration Committee is governed by its terms of reference, which
have been revised by the Board on 30 March 2012 pursuant to the Revised
Code. The terms of reference are currently available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are mainly to review
and determine the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other
compensation payable to the Directors and senior management and to
make recommendation to the Board on the Group’s policy and structure
for all remuneration of the Directors and senior management. No Director
shall participate in any discussion about his or her own remuneration. The
remuneration of the Directors was determined with reference to their
respective experience, responsibilities with the Group and general market
conditions.

Two meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held during the year
ended 31 December 2015 to review the remuneration package of the
Directors and senior management. The individual attendance of each
member is set out below.

R-Z—RF+—A0B @ENEERRER
FNREEXR MERELERREELE
REAFMEESKE -

FHEZEeXAREREEE EFERN_F
——FZA=THAREKE TSR R BESR
cHMEZ B e RERERC T BN AR K
RFH -

77

3

FME S EAREIZRENRETRNES
LERERBZHMTE  EANKEMENE
& YRAKEREEERSMEEEFHFHAK
RERBREFSREES - HEEF2EEM
WREFMO TR EFHFMSEERTGEER
RASENBE RERTISRINETE -

HE-_Z-—RAF+-A=1+—RHLEFEHFHEZE
SEMMAEE IRANEERSAEEENH
BEA o ZREMERLERNT -

Number of meetings

attended/held

Name of member HESEHE BHRYERYE
Mr. Bao Jingiao (Chairman) e Wk E(EE)

(appointed on 4 November 2015) (R=ZE—RF+—ANBEZT) N
Mr. Wong Chun Hung =AML

(appointed on 4 November 2015) (RZE—RF+—ANBEZT) /1
Mr. Leung Pok Man PSS

(appointed on 4 November 2015) (R=—=—RHE+—ANBEZT) N
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter (Chairman) B RB LA (FE)

(resigned on 4 November 2015) (R=ZE—RF+—ANB&T) N
Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve EETRR

(resigned on 4 November 2015) (R=ZF—RF+— AEAFT) /1
Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent mAEL

(resigned on 4 November 2015) (RZE—RF+—ANHE&ET) /1
Dr. Xue Quan EREL

(resigned on 4 November 2015) (R=ZE—RF+— AMB&T) N

China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited ZEEREEXEEH R AT



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

_\LII_/‘\—/\—\
1FE 3= /Elflf&m

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 31 December
2010 with written terms of reference which are in compliance with the
code provision of the Code. To comply with the amended Code which
became effective on 1 September, 2013, the Board (on the
recommendation of the Nomination Committee) amended the terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee to adopt a policy concerning
diversity in the board of directors.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include the making of
recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors and
succession planning for the Directors. The specific terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee are currently available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Board appointments are based on merit and candidates are considered
based on objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The Company remains committed to
meritocracy in the Boardroom, which requires a diverse and inclusive
culture where the Directors believe that their views are heard, their
concerns are attended to and they serve in an environment where bias,
discrimination and harassment on any matter are not tolerated.

The following is a summary of the work of the Nomination Committee
during the year ended 31 December, 2015:

. review the structure, size and composition (including but without
limitation, the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

. review the retirement of Directors by rotation and the re-
appointment of the retiring Directors at the 2015 Annual General
Meeting;

. review the reappointment of Directors during the year; and

. assess the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors.

During the period from 1 January 2015 to 4 November 2015, the
Nomination Committee consisted of four members, comprising one
Executive Director, namely, Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve, and three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan
Peter, Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent and Dr. Xue Quan (Chairman). They
resigned as members of the Nomination Committee with effect from 4
November 2015.
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On 4 November 2015, Mr. Bao Jingiao was appointed as the Chairman of
the Nomination Committee whereas Mr. Wong Chun Hung and Mr. Leung
Pok Man were appointed as the member of the Nomination Committee.

One Nomination Committee meeting was held and the individual
attendance of each member is set out below.

R-ZZE—AF+—ANR  BEHEEREER
REZBEEIR MEHAMELERREXELR
ZERREZEREKE -
RAZEEEAM—AEH  SRENEGLE
T o

Number of meetings

attended/held

Name of member HESEHE BHRYERYE
Mr. Bao Jingiao (Chairman) MEFRE (F/E)

(appointed on 4 November 2015) (R=ZE—RF+—ANBEZT) 0/0
Mr. Wong Chun Hung =AML

(appointed on 4 November 2015) (RZZE—hE+—HANAEZE) 0/0
Mr. Leung Pok Man PSS

(appointed on 4 November 2015) (R=ZZ2E—RF+—ANBEZT) 0/0
Dr. Xue Quan (Chairman) EREL(FE)

(resigned on 4 November 2015) (R=ZE—RF+— ANBA&T) 1/1
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter Bz RB A

(resigned on 4 November 2015) (R=ZF—RF+— AEAFT) 1/1
Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve BT S

(resigned on 4 November 2015) (RZE—RF+—ANBA&ET) 17
Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent AmAtEL

(resigned on 4 November 2015) (R=ZE—RF+—ANAET) 171

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cash flows for that period.

The statement by the auditors of the Company about their responsibilities
for the financial statements is set out in the report of the independent
auditor’s report contained in the Annual Report. There are no material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

AUDITORS REMUNERATION

The Company engaged RSM Hong Kong as its external auditors for the
Year. Analysis of the remuneration in respect of audit services provided by
the external auditors is included in note 13 to the financial statements in
the Annual Report. For the Year, the total fee paid in respect of the non-
audit services is approximately HK$0.16 million.
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The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control system. The Board has through the Audit
Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions. The review has also considered the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff in respect of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget. The Board considers the existing resources,
qualifications and experience of staff and their training programmes and
budget should be adequate in respect of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function.

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on requisition by
shareholders

The general meetings of our Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of our Company shall be held in each year. Each general
meeting, other than an annual general meeting is referred to as an
extraordinary general meeting.

According to article 64 of the Articles of Association of our Company, the
Board may, whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general
meeting. Extraordinary general meetings shall also be convened on the
requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of
the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition
shall be made in writing to the Board or the Secretary for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting
shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

Shareholders who wish to move a resolution at general meetings may
follow the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.
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In order to keep shareholders well informed of the business activities and
direction of the Group, information about the Group has been provided to
the shareholders through financial reports and announcements. The
Company has established its own corporate website www.chinahealthcare.
com.hk as a channel to facilitate effective communication with its
shareholders and the public. The Company will continue to enhance
communications and relationships with its shareholders and investors.

Shareholders, investors and interested parties can make enquiries directly
to the Company through the following e-mail: enquiry@1143.com.hk.

Constitutional Documents

During 2015, the Company has not made any changes to its Memorandum
and Articles of Association.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Gong Shaoxiang, aged 42, has ample experience in corporate
operation and management. He was a director of Gosun Holding Co., Ltd.
(formerly known as Hubei Landing Holding Co., Limited) (shares of which
are listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 000971) (“Goshun™)
from August 2012 to December 2014. Mr. Gong has been the chairman and
general manager of a local property developing company in the PRC since
May 2014.

Mr. Lee Chi Hwa, Joshua, aged 43, is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lee has extensive experience
in the fields of auditing, accounting and financing. Mr. Lee currently serves
as an independent non-executive director of Hao Tian Development Group
Limited (stock code: 474) and Jin Bao Bao Holdings Limited (stock code:
1239), which are listed on the Main board of the Stock Exchange, and
China Fortune Investments (Holding) Limited (stock code: 8116), Code
Agriculture (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 8153) and Focus Media
Network Limited (stock code: 8112), which are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-
executive director of China Minsheng Drawin Technology Group Limited
(stock code: 726) from December 2013 to February 2015 and King Stone
Energy Group Limited (stock code: 663) (“King Stone”) from January 2012
to April 2013.

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Cao Yuyun, aged 54, had worked in various positions, including deputy
general manager of head office sales department, deputy branch manager
and general manager of operation center, at Agricultural Development
Bank of China for over 10 years until May 2011. He then joined Anhui
Landing Holding Group Co., Ltd. (Z & & SR EB AR 2 7)) (“Anhui
Landing”) in May 2011 and currently he is a director and vice president of
Anhui Landing. Mr. Cao was also a director and the chairman of Goshun
from October 2013 to December 2014.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Bao Jinqiao, aged 50, was graduated from Shanghai Academy of
Social Sciences with the Master Degree in Law Department and from
Anhui University with research study in Civil Law in 1988 respectively. He is
a lawyer qualified to practise in the PRC. Mr. Bao is the founder and
partner of Anhui Chengyi Law Firm since 2000. He is currently an
independent non-executive director of Landing International Development
Limited which is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 582).

Mr. Wong Chun Hung, aged 42, was graduated from Hong Kong Baptist
University with a bachelor degree in accounting. He is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has over 10 years’
experience in accounting, auditing and consulting. Mr. Wong has been the
director of B&C Finance and Corporate Advisory Limited since December
2005. He is also an independent non-executive director of Pacific Plywood
Holdings Limited (stock code: 767) which is listed on the Main board of the
Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-executive director of China
Household Holdings Limited (formerly known as Bao Yuan Holdings
Limited (stock code: 692)), Tech Pro Technology Development Limited
(stock code: 3823) until June 2011 and January 2011 respectively. He was a
non-executive director of King Stone until March 2013 and was also an
executive director of Evershine Group Holdings Limited (formerly known
as TLT Lottotainment Group Limited (stock code: 8022)) until December
2013,

Mr. Leung Pok Man, aged 47, was graduated from York University in
Toronto, Canada with a bachelor degree in arts. He has over 15 years’
experience in sales management & business development in the industry
relating to information technology and audio visual systems. He is
currently the sales and business development consultant of a trading
company of information technology and network products and mobile
accessories.

Mr. Poon Ka Lee Barry has been the company secretary of the Company
since 20 August 2010. He resigned as the company secretary of the
Company on 4 November 2015. On the same date, Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua
was appointed as the company secretary of the Company. His biographical
details are set out in the sub- section headed “Directors” in this section.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with the
audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015.

In order to better reflect the Group’s upcoming business strategy to shift
its business focus on the medical and healthcare industry, the Company
changed its English name from “Telefield International (Holdings) Limited”
to “China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited” and the dual foreign name
of the Company be changed from “FRZBEIEER A A" to “EERE
BE %% E AR QA" These changes were approved at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 4 February 2016. The certificate
of incorporation on change of name certifying the registration of change
of English name of the Company issued by the Registry of Companies in
Cayman Islands was issued on 16 February 2016, and the Certificate of
Registration of Alteration of Name of Registered Non-Hong Kong
Company certifying the new names of the Company have been registered
in Hong Kong under Part 16 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) was issued on 11 March 2016.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are
set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during
the Year.

OVERVIEW

Details of (i) business review (ii) principal risks and uncertainties and (iii)
future development of the Group’s business are set out respectively in the
“Business overview”, “Key risks and uncertainties” and “Prospects”
sections under “Management Discussion and Analysis” of the annual
report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year using financial key
performance indicators is set out in the Group’s Five-year Financial
Summary on pages 182 to 183 of this annual report. Particulars of
important events affecting the Company that have occurred since the end
of the financial year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in note 49 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business depends on
the support from its key stakeholders, including employees, customers,
suppliers, banks, regulators and shareholders. The Group will continue to
ensure effective communication and maintain good relationship with each
of its key stakeholders.
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The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2015 and the Group’s
financial position at that date are set out in the financial statements on
pages 48 to 52.

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited financial statements is set out on pages 182 to
183. This summary does not form part of the audited financial statements
in this annual report.

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted to
HK$654,000 (2014: HK$3,900).

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the Year are
set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed
securities by the Company or any of the subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2015.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015, the loss attributable to shareholders
of the Company amounted to HK$1.8 million. The Company’s reserves
available for distribution comprise share premium and retained profits.
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the Company’s share
premium account may be applied by the Company in paying distributions
or dividend to shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the distribution or dividend is proposed to be
paid, the Company shall be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

As at 31 December 2015, the Company had distributable reserves
amounting to HK$47,106,000, calculated in accordance with statutory
provisions applicable in the Cayman Islands.

Related parties transactions of the Group during the Year are disclosed in
note 48 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

During the Year, the Company and the Group had the following connected
and continuing connected transactions, certain details of which are
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Connected transaction

On 7 October 2015, the Group disposed of the equity interests of a group
of subsidiaries and associates to Dragon Fortune, a former controlling
shareholder of the Company, at a consideration of HK$169,800,000 (the
“Disposal”) (as set out in note 44(a)).

Continuing connected transaction

Pursuant to the master electronics manufacturing services agreement
dated 7 August 2015 (as supplemented on 7 September 2015) entered into
between Noble Treasure Holdings Limited (“Noble Treasure”) and Telefield
Holdings Limited (“Telefield Holdings”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company (the “Master Sale Agreement”) in relation to the provision
of various wireless communication products, audio equipment products
and other relevant electronic products and ancillary parts and services
(including sourcing and procurement, production and after-sales services)
by the Company and its subsidiaries after the completion of the Disposal
(“Remaining Group”) to the group of subsidiaries disposed of by the
Company upon the Disposal (“Disposal Group”) for a period commencing
from the date of the completion of the Disposal to 31 December 2016.
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Further details of the transactions above are set out in the circular of the
Company dated 9 September 2015.

From the date of completion of the Disposal to 31 December 2015, the
Remaining Group has entered into the sales of goods transaction with the
disposed subsidiaries as follows:

TERG I~ i?l ﬁﬁ”b":‘$ﬁﬁ? BHA=F
—hFAANBEZE

HPrEEHEEKAMEE _TE—FHFE+ A
=+—8 #TEEEEHEHB AT H
EERMRSUOT ¢

HK$

BT
Maestro Wireless Solutions Limited EEEGRIEBRAT 774,155
STI Technology Limited ZERE AR AT 1,612,314
Telefield Gaems Limited Telefield Gaems Limited 1,773,249
Total @t 4,159,718
The aggregate amount of transactions above was within the approved it 5 4@ 58 £ & 8t /& F E EBR 5,000,000 7T
annual cap of HK$5 million. In addition, included in the transactions above,  Z&EA o It4h - Ll S EIEH AL BERE
the sales of goods made to Maestro Wireless Solutions Limited, STI AR A7) - SRR AR A 7] & Telefield Gaems

Technology Limited and Telefield Gaems Limited amounting to
HK$120,000, HK$94,000 and HK$489,000, respectively are accounted for
as related party transaction and being further disclosed in the note 48 to
the consolidated financial statements as Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve
(resigned on 4 November 2015) whose remained as the director of the
Company for the period from 7 October 2015 (date of completion of the
Disposal) to 4 November 2015 owned beneficial interest in the aforesaid
disposed subsidiaries.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions and have confirmed
that such transactions were entered into:

(i)  inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms and on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available from independent third parties; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on

terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders as a whole.

China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited ZEEREEXEEH R AT

Limited 38 & & & © & 88 9 5l /120,000 7T
94,000/8 7T & 489,000 7L * WIABBEF XS A
I - WHRERA ISIRAMI T 48— ST BhA
BEHEE(R-_E—AFE+—ANBET) R
T-AFtATtHA(EXNHERR E=F—RF
+—AMBHE RAiEHENEAREAE
miER °

BUFATEFESN LUBEHERS - W
BERXZ 2R TITTAETL

) RAKEAER—REBBES :

@D ?ﬁ-ﬁ%ﬂ“%ﬂ&?ﬁﬁé$%@ﬂ§?§ﬁ
=T EEEVIRER

(i)  REBEREBRE
AR F RS

00 YRAFOREF
80 T



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFRs

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Company’s auditor has
issued their unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group
in this annual report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

The auditors’ letter confirms that, in respect of the above-mentioned
continuing connected transactions:

a. nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the auditors
to believe that the above-mentioned continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Company’s Board of
Directors.

b. nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the auditors
to believe that the above-mentioned continuing connected
transactions were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions.

C. nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the auditors
to believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group.

d. with respect to the aggregate amount of the abovementioned
continuing connected transactions, nothing has come to the
auditors’ attention that causes the auditors to believe that the
above-mentioned continuing connected transactions have exceeded
the maximum aggregate annual value disclosed in the Circular of the
Company dated 9 September 2015.
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During the Year, total sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 61% of the Group’s sales for the Year and sales to the largest
customer included therein amounted to 26.7%. Total purchases from the
Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 17.2% of the Group’s
purchases.

None of Directors, their associates or any substantial shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the listed issuers
share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers and
customers.

The Remuneration Committee was established for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market practices.

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Gong Shaoxiang (Chairman)
(appointed on 4 November 2015)
Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua (appointed on 4 November 2015)
Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve (Chairman)
(resigned on 4 November 2015)
Mr. Poon Ka Lee Barry (resigned on 4 November 2015)
Mr. Ng Kim Yuen (resigned on 4 November 2015)
Ms. Fok Pui Yin (resigned on 4 November 2015)
Mr. Lee Kai Bon (resigned on 4 November 2015)

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Cao Yuyun (appointed on 4 November 2015)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Bao Jingiao (appointed on 4 November 2015)

Mr. Wong Chun Hung (appointed on 4 November 2015)

Mr. Leung Pok Man (appointed on 4 November 2015)

Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter (resigned on 4 November 2015)
Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent (resigned on 4 November 2015)

Dr. Xue Quan (resigned on 4 November 2015)
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In accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, all the newly appointed Directors are subject to retirement at
the first general meeting of the Company after their appointments.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
Mr. Bao Jingiao, Mr. Wong Chun Hung and Mr. Leung Pok Man, and as at
the date of this annual report, the Company still considers them to be
independent.

Biographical details of the Directors of the Group are set out on pages 29
to 30 of this annual report.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Save as disclosed in note 48 to the consolidated financial statements, no
Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract
of significance to the business of the Group subsisted at the end of the
Year or at any time during the Year to which the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party.

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the Year.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2015, interests and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance ("SFO")) held by the Directors and chief executives of the
Company which have been notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) or have been entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or
otherwise have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code are as follows:

Company/Name of
associated corporation

DR EBEEERE

Mr. Lee Kai Bon
(resigned on 4 November 2015)
TEHTE
(RZZT—RF+—AEBET)

The Company
PiN/NE]|

The Company
PiN/NC]|

Mr. Poon Ka Lee Barry
(resigned on 4 November 2015)
ER AL E
(RZZT—RF+—AEBET)
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Interest discloseable under the SFO and substantial BEZBLERBERARENEZREIERR

shareholders

R-ZE—AF+-A=+—8 UWFAL ER
PR S AR RBE R 9 P R S ZE AR B 4B 5 I B S 16191
FEXVEE2RIDEIEXRAIARR TR ek
#KA - KIRIEES R EEHIEIZ6IEAARA

As at 31 December 20715, the following persons/entities have an interest or
a short position in the Shares or the underlying Shares which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which would be recorded in the register of the

Company required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Interest in the Company

FEMESLMAREERIAR

RAEQE) S

Percentage of
issued Share

Number of Long or Capital of the
Capacity shares held short position Company
AR AR B BT
S FEROEE HFEIXRE BABD
Power Port Holdings Limited Beneficial Owner 151,634,000  Long 30.6%
(“Power Port”) (Note 1) BB A e
Power Port Holdings Limited
(TPower Port ) (ftat1) 151,634,000  Short 30.6%
RE
Mr. Yang Zhihui (“Mr. Yang”) Held by controlled 151,634,000  Long 30.6%
(Note 1) corporation (55}
B E S A ([N AED (HfatT) AXEREERES
151,634,000  Short 30.6%
KB
Ms. Xu Ning (“Ms. Xu”) (Note 2) Interest of spouse 151,634,000  Long 30.6%
Tz (gL (faE2) IR [S52)
151,634,000  Short 30.6%
RE
Xinrong Fund Limited Person having a security 151,634,000 Long 30.6%
(“Xinrong Fund”) (Note 3) interest in shares [55)
Xinrong Fund Limited R pEEERER 2
([Xinrong Fund ]) (K75 3) AL
Wing Lung Asset Management Investment manager 151,634,000  Long 30.6%
Limited (“Wing Lung”) (Note 3) BB S

KEBEEERARAR(KE]) (HZS)
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Percentage of
issued Share
Capital of the

Number of Long or

Capacity shares held  short position Company
AR AT B BIT
g7 FERGEE HFREIXRE [ & N=
China Huarong International Held by controlled 145,700,000  Long 29.4%
Holdings Limited (“China Huarong”) corporation g
(Note 4, 5) B EHEERE
Hh B b B PR I AR B BR A A
([hEZ=ERL]) (Hfat4 - 5)
Empire Group Global Limited Beneficial Owner 71,860,000  Long 14.5%
(“Empire Group”) (Note 4) EnEAA e
Empire Group Global Limited
([Empire Group ) (KTat 4)
Partners Special Investments Fund Beneficial Owner 73,840,000 Long 14.9%
SP2 ("SP2”) (Note 5, 6) BB A e
Partners Special Investments Fund SP2
(FsP2)(Kizt5 - 6)
Azaleas Investment Holding Limited Held by controlled 73,840,000 Long 14.9%
(“Azaleas”) (Note 5) corporation e
Azaleas Investment Holding Limited BIEHEEFE
([Azaleas]) (M52 5)
PH Investment Management Limited Investment manager 73,840,000 Long 14.9%
(“PH Investment”) (Note 6) 8B REIR e
PH Investment Management Limited
(PH Investment ) (Afz£6)
Bullion Riches Limited Investment manager 73,840,000  Long 14.9%
(“Bullion Riches”) (Note 6) B s "R
Bullion Riches Limited
([Bullion Riches 1) (M5 6)
Partners Financial Holdings Limited Investment manager 73,840,000 Long 14.9%
(“Partners Financial”) (Note 6) REEIE g
BRErIZERAERA AR ([BAE])
(Ktate)
Bright Hope Global Investments Limited Investment manager 73,840,000 Long 14.9%
(“Bright Hope™) (Note 6) KEKIE o

Bright Hope Global Investments Limited

([Bright Hope ) (A1zF6)
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Percentage of
issued Share

Number of Long or Capital of the
Capacity shares held  short position Company
EARQAT BT
51 FEROEBE JFEIXRE BABD L
Winnex International Investments Investment manager 73,840,000 Long 14.9%
Limited (“Winnex”) (Note 6) WEKE g
KIGBBIREBAR AR ([KIE])
(HizF6)
Zhang Yi (Note 6) Investment manager 73,840,000 Long 14.9%
RER(MTaE6) WEKIE [S2)
Cheng Kin Ming (Note 6) Investment manager 73,840,000 Long 14.9%
ER3ERE (ffat6) B K [S=)
Notes: B

151,634,000 ordinary shares are held by Power Port, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands whose entire issued share capital is held by Mr. Yang.

Ms. Xu is the spouse of Mr. Yang. Under the SFO, Ms. Xu is deemed to be interested in
the same number of Shares in which Mr. Yang is interested.

Wing Lung, through Xinrong Fund which is the controlled corporation wholly owned by
Wing Lung, is interested in 151,634,000 shares of the Company as long position.

71,860,000 ordinary shares are held by Empire Group, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands whose entire issued share capital is held by China Huarong.

73,840,000 ordinary shares are held by SP2, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands whose entire issued share capital is held by Azaleas, which in turn is
wholly controlled by China Huarong.

PH Investment is the investment manager of SP2 and is therefore deemed to be
interested in the shares owned by SP2 under the SFO. PH Investment is wholly
controlled by Bullion Riches, which in turn is wholly controlled by Partners Financial.
Partners Financial is held by Winnex and Bright Hope with 50% and 44% interest,
respectively. Winnex is wholly controlled by Cheng Kin Ming whereas Bright Hope is
wholly controlled by Zang Yi.

1. 151,634,000 % % 38 % F Power Port#578 + AR KB R
ZESHAMK I ZARAR - A EITROBMEE
A o

2, FRERMELEZRE - RESHFRPRGED - it
AR AP A e ek 2 AR R BB AR o B s o

3. JKBE#E Xinrong Fund (BkKEEEHA 2 XA ) AR
AA)151,634,000 R IR 10 2 4 B B e as o

4. 71,860,000 A% I 3 % f3 Empire Group A + % A IR
BREESHMAY - H2HEBTRAHT HERS
ﬁ °

5, 73,840,000 & BAR EH SP235 A » LA TR EBEIE R
SaEMAY - E2BEHITRAAAzleasHFE © M
Azaleas Bl BIZE RAFE & ©

6. PH Investment & SP2 2 IR & /832 - AL IRIEZEH KHE
B4R BRSP2ER 2 RHD P HEH %z PH
Investment & Bullion Riches & & % fll - i Bullion Riches
Al RS R 2 EEH - A28 % Bl k8 & Bright
Hope#7 50% K 44% 125 o sk A EBEERR 2 B4 H] -
Bright Hope FR R &6 2 & 12l o
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Save as disclosed in the share option scheme below, at no time during the
Year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective associates, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire
such rights in any other body corporate.

During the period ended 31 December 2015, none of the Directors or
controlling shareholders of the Company nor their respective associates is
considered to have interests in a business that competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group
other than those businesses where the Directors have been appointed or
were appointed as Directors to represent the interests of the Company.

As to attract and retain the eligible persons, to provide additional incentive
to them and to promote the success of the business of the Group, the
Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on
31 December 2010 whereby the Board are authorised, at their absolute
discretion and subject to the terms of the Scheme, to grant options to
subscribe for the shares of the Company (the “Shares”) to, inter alia, any
employees (full-time or part-time), Directors, consultants, advisers,
distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business partners
or service providers of the Group. The Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of ten years commencing from the date on which the Scheme
was adopted, subject to the early termination provisions contained in the
Scheme.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount payable
by the grantee of an option to the Company on acceptance of the offer for
the grant of an option is HK$1.00. The subscription price of a Share in
respect of any particular option granted under the Scheme shall be a price
solely determined by the Board and notified to a participant and shall be
at least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the option;
(ii) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the option; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Share on the date of grant of the option provided always that for the
purpose of calculating the subscription price, where the Company has
been listed on the Stock Exchange for less than 5 trading days, the issue
price shall be used as the closing price for any trading day fall within the
period before the Listing Date.

China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited 2= E @ BEAE ¥ £ E AR AT

BRTIXEREAIMREEN  ARBARAFE
REAEERENTMNESARESAZHEA
ITREAHBRBARBRMOHES M ER 27
Mo RS EITEERNZSEN  HARF]
H AR 2N B e BARAATBT B8 2t B 3 B 5 Y /B8 2 B
BRI AR BEES A RNEREMEAR
BESILFEN -

REE-Z-—HF+-A=+—HI-HH  #E
EEHARRERBRABES B 2BBARR
AT BN S B S TS B K S AR B P RE B A
EZEB(ERZRZAEREREZEREZTURRE
AR BN 2 BRI P B A A o

RESI RBEAERAL  MKFRHEEINZR
ARESAEEE L ESR  ARRER T —F
Frt- A=+ B A GRMFRMERE S (5
) Bl EFEEEREE2ERDBREEMN
s (A ek AREEMEER (ZR®
B) - #2% - FH - SAER - DEE - 088
HER  RI2 FF  BEEBHIRBHERER
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HEZREARBREA AR R M1.008TT - 5t
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The Company shall be entitled to issue options, provided that the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Scheme does not exceed 10% of the shares in issue
from the Listing Date. The Company may at any time refresh such limit,
subject to the shareholders’ approval and issue of a circular in compliance
with the Listing Rules, provided that the total number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under all the share option schemes of the Company does not
exceed 30% of the shares in issue at the time. An option may be exercised
in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time during a period as
the Board may determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date
of grant subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share option
outstanding during the year:

Number of share options
BREHA
At
At Granted during Exercised
Name of category of participant 1 January 2015 the year during the year 2015
R=B-1F
SHEABREE/ 2 -A-H ERd ERTE
Director
=
Mr. Poon Ka Lee Barry - 4,117,140 (4,117,140 -
(resigned on 4 November 2015)
ARAIRE
(RZE-RE+—ANAET)
* The share options were vested when they were granted.

31 December Date of grant of
share options*

BRERLAS:

ARARERBTRERE ETEASETRTH
AR AR RTHRNAR T SEBB LN
HEIE BT H910% o 22X B AT AR A B R B
AR LR HASRRRAELET LR
FEBERE - HAER - MITERBEEARRME
BEEERTHMEMARITERBRERERFT
FEEEEER DR THNRNAHR  THRAER
EEITIRMAI30% - BREAREZTSETNH
PR ESRTTE - A& TR EIMVIRSK » X
RN SBEBRE A HETF - AREBGXE
BRIE -

TEREBRFARRRRITERREZZE

Exercise
price of
share
options HK$
per share
BhE
SRER
i

Exercise period of
share options

RRETES

22 January 2015 22 January 2015 0.65
“E-TF - 21 January 2025
-f=tZH “T-RF-F-1CH
ECECRE-ACT-H

. BRENFHECHRE -

Annual Report %k 2015

43



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESgWHE

The directors have estimated the value of the shares options granted
during the year, calculated using the binominal option pricing mode as at
the date of grant of the options:

Grantee

Mr. Poon Ka Lee Barry ERF LA

EXCAEFFARKBREZEE  HERREBK
BELAHER BT ERAGE

Theoretical
value of
share options
R
BiREE
HK$

BIT

Number of options
granted during
the year

FRRZL

BRERE

4,117,140 934,000

The binomial option pricing model is a generally accepted method of
valuing options. The significant assumptions used in the calculation of the
value of the shares options were expected volatility, expected life and risk-
free rate. The measurement date used in the valuation calculations were
the dates on which the options were granted.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has applied the code provisions set out in the Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Since its listing on the Stock
Exchange, the Company has complied with the code provisions of the
Code, save for the exceptions explained in the Corporate Governance
Report in this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by the public as at the date of this annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period are set
out in note 49 to the consolidated financial statements.
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At the Company’s last Annual General Meeting, RSM Nelson Wheeler was
re-appointed as auditor of the Company. On 26 October 2015 our auditor
changed the name under which it practices to RSM Hong Kong and
accordingly has signed its report under its new name.

RSM Hong Kong retires, and, being eligible, offers themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of RSM Hong Kong
will be put at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Gong Shaoxiang
Chairman

Hong Kong
22 March 2016

RARR EARKBFERE  PIHEEEBE
ST ESEERAARAR ZZEA - RZF
—HFTAZTRA - RBAMERXHESTE
A RSM Nelson Wheeler 8 24 A RSM Hong Kong *
HREFLAEFEEEE -

TinEE (BFE) Gt EBMERE - HEE B

BEL MERREZAWABRRNAGRTZ
BIRBFAE LIRE -

RREZFE

#OH
FE

B
—E-RF=ZA=+=H
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
B A AN RS

TO THE MEMBERS OF

CHINA HEALTHCARE ENTERPRISE GROUP LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS TELEFIELD INTERNATIONAL
(HOLDINGS) LIMITED)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited (Formerly known as Telefield
International (Holdings) Limited) (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set
out on pages 48 to 181, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited 2 E @ BEAE X £ E AR AT

BEEREEXEERRLA

(FIBATZERERERATF)
ERIRR

(RESHSEMALABRAA])

RMEBEIIRNE BT AEERFELE
BERARMBAREREERERAR) (&
AR RAMBARZGANBRE - EAH
BREOEN-T-AFT-A=t+—B2EA
PBRRBRRBELE I FE 2 RAERE -
BARNRAMEARSE  RARNEBRR
BARSRER UREERHEEMERL
RIBARS -

EARNEFARBRETERHDAREHZE
B RS R R RE S D A0 BERE
RUABERAFIGARBES  REEERA
R ABBRRAUEMNBERL - EEA
B 165 4 % T 1 PP BB S8 3R T B B B A8
SRR o

B2 EERRERM2BREZERA MR
RERBR  LEAZERREE Rt zIK
BENEEMBH - RATERAREARAE
EMALTE ESAREERNEE - RAZSRRE
BRI ASRM I EEETEAETER - &
LEERIEBSKE I TBIERR - WREIRNITE
% NEERENEGEVBRRES TN FAE
A EAREERBRAL



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B A HEN S

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31
December 2015, and their financial performance and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

— N\ 7/

AN
YA A . é-\J/ﬁ_

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z —FE—AF 1+ -H=+—HILFF

2015 2014
—E-hF —E—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FET
(Restated)
(&=751)
Continuing operations HERSEER
Revenue A 8 1,008,561 1,032,957
Cost of goods sold SHE A (796,467) (807,480)
Gross profit EF 212,094 225,477
Other income E A 10 13,687 15,860
Selling and distribution expenses HE R D HEAX (55,365) (65,900)
Administrative expenses THE R (76,573) (75,303)
Other operating expenses HAg=E &R (43,729) (35,965)
Profit from operations RERF 50,114 64,169
Finance costs BUE KA 11 (6,081) (7,456)
Share of loss of a joint venture DE—HEEELEEE (117) (1,433)
Profit before tax BRFR A& A 43,916 55,280
Income tax expense s> 12 (5,549) (8,144)
Profit for the year from BEREER 2 EERAN
continuing operations 13 38,367 47,136
Discontinued operations BRIEEEET
Loss for the year from discontinued ERIHEEEE 2 FEBRE
operations 16 (79,432) (89,409)
Loss for the year FEBE (41,065) (42,273)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z —FE—AF 1+ _H=+—HIFF

2015 2014
—E-—FF — U
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FET
(GESEIE0))
(&=751)
Attributable to: DT &5 e
Owners of the Company ZiN/NETEZ Z =N (1,844) 577
Non-controlling interests FEIE N M= (39,221) (42,850)
(41,065) (42,273)
(Loss)/earnings per share SR (EBE) &R 18
From continuing and discontinued BERESEBRNDRILEEER
operations
Basic (cents per share) AR (FREN) (0.44) 0.14
Diluted (cents per share) g (FRB L) (0.44) N/ANE A
From continuing operations BEBEREEER
Basic (cents per share) A (TR 9.65 11.58
Diluted (cents per share) #5E (ZRBI) 9.60 N/A N A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

reBm MEMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF+—_A=1+—HIFFE

2015 2014
—E-hF —E—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FET
Loss for the year FEFE (41,065) (42,273)
Other comprehensive income Hitt 2w
Items that will not be reclassified to BT EEF S EEEmAEE -
profit or loss:
Gain/(loss) on property revaluation YEB B (BE) 19 4,236 (600)
Deferred tax changes from gain/loss on  #¥ & fUkzs EES
property revaluation RIE T TR &) 39 (545) 99
3,691 (501)
[tems that may be reclassified to AEFSEEEmMIER -
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating HMEBINETEHIE =58
foreign operations 1,418 1,481
Exchange differences reclassified to HEGINEBRENSEEEEN
profit or loss on disposal of foreign b 3 2= 58 (M3 44())
operations (note 44(a)) (3,810) -
(2,392) 1,481
Other comprehensive income for FEHMEEKE - HNRHTEE
the year, net of tax 1,299 980
Total comprehensive income for the year FE2H AT (39,766) (41,293)
Attributable to: T &5 e
Owners of the Company ZiN/NETEZ Z =N (2,690) (600)
Non-controlling interests FEIE N M (37,076) (40,693)
(39,766) (41,293)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MR

As at 31 December 2015 R=FE—HaFE+_-H=1+—H

2015 2014
—2-1F —FT-mF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHBxT FAETT
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Fixed assets ElEEE 19 72,167 105,050
Prepaid lease payments FERHEERIE 20 3,259 7,001
Goodwill GES 21 - 3,471
Intangible assets B EE 22 6,113 43,132
Investments in associates REEE N AR E 24 - 2,403
Investment in a joint venture R—HEELENTE 25 - 134
Available-for-sale financial assets AtHEEREE 26 - =
Deferred tax assets EEFRTEE 39 14,046 12,221
Total non-current assets FRBEEHLE 95,585 173,412
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 5E 27 130,260 290,143
Trade receivables FEUE 5 BR K 28 169,322 315,648
Prepayments, deposits and TENRIAE -« e R EAM
other receivables JEU IR 29 14,834 116,236
Derivative financial assets TTEELREE 30 798 4,824
Amount due from a non-controlling eI — IR B A Al FEIE AR
shareholder of a subsidiary fi% B FIE 31 - 1,257
Current tax assets BIHARR BB &= 1,442 4,822
Bank and cash balances RITRIR B LR 32 441,207 185,752
Total current assets RBEEHAE 757,863 918,682
TOTAL ASSETS BEE 853,448 1,092,094
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Equity attributable to owners NARHER AELERS
of the Company
Share capital %N 40 4,955 4,117
Reserves HAth A 42 549,005 365,639
553,960 369,756
Non-controlling interests JEFERR = (5,958) (18,209)
Total equity e 548,002 351,547
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AR e AR R

As at 31 December 2015 R=E—HFE+_-H=1+—H

2015 2014
—2-1F —FT-0F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FET
LIABILITIES 8E&
Non-current liabilities kRBES
Financial liabilities at fair value BAFEFABENERAE
through profit or loss 38 - 646
License rights payable T REFE R 3R 22(b) 12,209 16,474
Deferred tax liabilities FEIEFRIAEE 39 8,030 17,225
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEHRE 20,239 34,345
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables BN E SRR 33 116,528 280,502
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A R E M 3R 34 143,709 266,247
Amounts due to non-controlling FEAH I B A B FEIE AR AR R FB
shareholders of subsidiaries 35 135 1,798
Bank borrowings RITIEE 36 - 117,075
Financial liabilities at fair value BAFEFAEENEREE
through profit or loss 38 - 3,428
License rights payable R REFE T 3K 22(b) 15,043 9,963
Derivative financial liabilities TETLRaE 30 - 82
Product warranty provisions EmRAEE 37 4,298 21,885
Current tax liabilities BIHARR IR &1 5,494 5,222
Total current liabilities REBEEAE 285,207 706,202
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEkBEREE 853,448 1,092,094
Approved by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2016 and are signed on BZ=@R T RNFE=A-+ B EILTHNUT
its behalf by: EFEERKREE

Gong Shaoxiang Lee Chi Hwa Joshua
Bk < TgEE
Director Director

= =
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ReEm PR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z —FE—AF 1+ _H=+—HIFF

Attributable to owners of the Company
ARAREAER
Foreign Share-
Share currency  Property based Non-
Share  premium Merger translation revaluation Contributed  Statutory Capital ~ payments  Retained  Proposed controlling
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve profits dividend Total interests
9 (note 47 (0 ( % )

(note42  (note 42 (note 42 ) (note 42

RIRE

AtL January 2014 RZE-ME
-A-A 4117 115,508 311 20,200 17,066 18,298 1,660 (9,029 = 196,510 10,293 377,79 125% 390,390

Total comprehensive FREEANGER

income for the year - - - (676) (50D - - - - 577 - (600)  (40693)  (4129%)
Acquisition of shares inthe (AR

non-wholly owned —FE2ENE

subsiciaries from P

non-controling (W44 k(@)

sharefolders (note 44(c)

and (@) B - a = - - - 2,65 - - - 2,655 (2,655)
Acquisition of subsidiaries BERBAR

(note 44(b) and (c)) (Hrta40) k() - = - - - - - - - - - - 15,209 15,209

Deemed disposal of partial FEHENBAR
interests in subsiciares ok (hE

(note 44(f), (), (h) 40-@-®) = o o = = = = 6,576 = = ° 6,576 274 6,650
Dividend paid to HERAREER
non-controlling REZMARE
sharenolders by a
subsicliary 5 - - - - - - - - - - - (940) (940)
Transfer tostatutory reserve ~ ERTERHE - - - - - - 45 - - (445) - - - -
2013 final dividend paid BXfZE-Z5%
(note 17) BRs(Hit) = = - - - - - = = = (10293 (10,293) = (10.293)
2014 interim dvidend BXR-E-MmEd
paid (note 17) BRs(Hit) - - - - - - - - - (6176) - (6,176) - (6176)
2014 proposed final BER-E-MEX
dividend (note 17) Bk (Hatn) - - - - - = - - - (6176) 6,176 - -
At31 December 2014 RZZ-ME
+-A=+-H 4117 115,508 311 19524 16,55 18,298 2,105 2 = 184,290 6,176 369,756 (18209 351547
At 1 January 2015 RZ5-1%F
-A-A 4117 115,508 31 19,524 16,565 18,298 2,105 2 - 184,290 6,176 369,756 (18,209) 351,547
Total comprehensive FERENGER
income for the year - - - esn 3 - . - ) - Q) (IO (39766)
Share-based payment WRDBERZ
(note 43) Wi 4) - - - - - - - - 934 - - 934 - 934
Issue of shares under share  RIBERIER BRS
option scheme (note 43) i (H243) )1 3,569 - - - - - - (934) - - 2676 - 2676
Issue of shares Bk 797 188663 - - - - - - - - - 189460 - 189460
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAA
(note 44(3) (i ue) - - - - - - - 2974 - M - -3 B3
Transfer tostatutory reserve ~ BREATHE - - - - - - 4 - - (214 - - - -
2014 final dividend paid “E-PERARE
(note17) et - - - - - - - - - - 6B (6176 - 6176
2015 proposed final —E-RERERY
dividend (note 17) & (#it) - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
At 31 December 2015 R-E-1&
+-A=1-A 4955 307,740 31 14,987 20,256 18,298 2319 2,976 - 179258 - 553,960 (5,958) 548,002
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
meEReRER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF+—_A=1+—HIFFE

2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT FETT
(restated)
(F&&E751)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES &% EBESHE
Profit/(loss) before tax BRE RS A (E5E)
Continuing operations HEGE 43,916 55,280
Discontinued operations BRI E (83,919) (92,721)
(40,003) (37,441)
Adjustments for: g
Allowance for trade receivables, net FE U AR S F 5 4,966 2,291
Allowance on inventories, net GFEREFR 11,129 (10,180)
Amortisation of intangible assets EmI A EEH 10,233 13,632
Depreciation e 22,549 21,874
Share of profit of an associate ol —FElHgE & R B)a F (29) 2
Share of loss of a joint venture DME—EEELEEIE 117 1,433
Loss/(gain) on financial liabilities at BAFEFABENESRAEZ
fair value through profit or loss E518, (Yezs) 709 (6,036)
Gain on derivative assets/liabilities PTEBE &%= (7,062) (9,122)
Bad debt written off in trade receivables R FE U AR SR S 12 AR 1,192 -
Bad debt written off in other receivables A EL A R LS SR TE 8 352 B 8,573 22,212
Finance costs ELEZN N 10,882 15,873
Impairment loss on goodwill R ERE - 4,840
Impairment loss on intangible assets (note 22)  EEERIEEE (H:F22) 3,500 -
Impairment loss on amount due JE U — R B 20 B R IR R (E B 18
from an associate 448 6,048
Impairment loss on amount due from Bl —REA S ERIERERER
a joint venture 1,279 =
Discount on acquisition IR BT - (1,918)
Bank interest income HITHEWA (1,780) (1,061)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (note 44(a))  HEM B AT 2 EE (K 44(a)) 2,071 -
Loss/(gain) on disposal of fixed assets HEBTEEERSE (W) 50 @)
Provision on product warranty EnRARE 11,972 14,370
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
REREMER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF+—_A=1+—HIFFE

2015 2014
—E-HF —Z—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT F&TT
(restated)
(F&&E751)
Operating profit before working capital changes & & & & E AT 2 %= F) 40,796 36,809
Payment of license fee payables AT REE R (3,756) (5,377)
Decrease in inventories FER 52,893 17,310
Decrease in trade receivables EUE 5 R FUR 85,971 105,443
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, FERNRIE - Re REM KA
deposits and other receivables S (#hn) 33,309 (44,355)

Decrease/(increase) in amount due JiE U B 8 N B FRIE R A (38 00)

from associates 1,234 (5,571)
Increase in amount due from a joint venture  FEI—fI4& &2 FIBIL N (1,262) a7
(Increase)/decrease in amount due from a FEY— M B A B — R IEIE AR AR R

non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary FIE (L), F (336) 1,197
Decrease in trade payables ENEBZERFRL (132,251) (37,753)

IR E A R H RN FIE OB,/

(Decrease)/increase in accruals and

other payables 30 (33,298) 31,934
Decrease in amounts due to non-controlling  FE{TBT B A 7 FE2 A% A% 38 1 I8 i
shareholders of subsidiaries (1,363) (2,405)

Decrease in product warranty provisions EmRBEERD (11,833) (9,967)
Cash generated from operations LETSHE® 30,104 87,248

Income tax paid BEXEEH (8,377) (14,778)

Finance costs paid BEXmERA (6,311) (10,704)
Net cash generated from operating activities &4 SEBIFTIEIE & F %8 15,416 61,766
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFZHHEESHRE
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 44(b), (c)) WeEE M B A B (Mfat 44(b) ~ (©) - (11,510)
Cash transfer to margin account of BeEBRELLETREBSER

brokerage firm (334,000) -
Decrease in financial liabilities at fair value EAVEFEZSRBERD (3,156) =
Decrease/(increase) in prepaid lease payments &R E KB R L /(3 10) 3,114 (7,001)
Disposal of subsidiaries (net of cash and HENBAR (HIBRHERE R

cash equivalents disposal of) (note 44(a)) REFZEBW) (Kt 44(a)) 153,037 -
Interest received BB 1,780 1,061
Payment of contingent considerations (note 38) X sk SAKAB (K7L 38) - (2,211)
Purchases of fixed assets BERTEE (26,067) (26,157)
Investments in associates R E R RIMNIRE - (49)
Loan to an associate M — R E AR EHER - (2,829)
Investment in a joint venture R—HEeEatENKRE - (1,550)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets HEBRTEEEMSRIE 268 -
Net proceeds/(payments) for settlement of HETHEEE BE

derivative assets/liabilities T8 sRIE,/ (B 3k1E) 35 11,006 (1,739
Net cash used in investing activities WEEBMSIRE F58 (194,018) (51,985)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF+—_A=1+—HIFFE

2015 2014
—E-hfF —E—OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THxT FHETT
(restated)
(#=&E7)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RIEEBHRLHRE
Acquisition of non-controlling interests U BB SRR AR R - (614)
Proceeds from placing B & TS U8 189,460 =
Proceeds from exercise of share options TR ARREFT 15 5TR 2,676 -
Bank loans raised BEEIFRTER 96,314 80,655
Repayment of bank loans BEIRTTER (140,089) (87,402)
Net import/export loans (repaid)/raised (B®), /CEEE HONEFFH (43,425) 12,009
Contributions from non-controlling IEERR IR R B E (M et 44(q) * (h))
shareholders (note 44(q), (h)) - 6,650
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders Al JE#5 AR A% B8 s < IR 5. - (940)
Dividend paid to owners of the Company EPNGIE 2PN ¥ (6,176) (16,469)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BMEEREE(FTA) R FHE
financing activities 98,760 (6,111)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE INCASHAND RERREZEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS CRi2), ¥ hnFHE (79,842) 3,670
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes i R B 2 1,297 (1,056)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—A—HNHRER
AT 1 JANUARY HEeZEY 185,752 183,138
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+t-ZA=+—HHHEER
AT 31 DECEMBER (Note 32) HeEEY (Hat32) 107,207 185,752
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Are M IE R M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF+—_A=1+—HIFFE

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law as an exempted company with limited liabilities on
18 May 2010. The address of its registered office is Clifton House, 75
Fort Street, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands
and principal place of business is Units 609-610, 6/F, Bio-Informatics
Centre, No. 2 Science Park West Avenue, Hong Kong Science Park,
Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA™). HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

KRR —_E—ZEFHA+TN\BREQRA
FERERSEMK I RERRERARF
H 5 B 9% 5 B 4k 4 Clifton House, 75 Fort
Street, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-
1108, Cayman Islands » = B4 ¥4 2h Al A F
AL BEESMBREBBRARER 2R E
&L 612 609-610 & o ANA RN 1E
ERBMERZPABR AT (B ER
ke

ARRRREERRAR EfBARNE
EEBENGA M BERRME2S

ZEEAVBHRRDRERIBEET L ST
R ((BEEEMAR ) MM ZAEER
FEMBREEA(HEMBHREEA )
e - BRVBRELENBREBTEYHR
SREAN(FEMBREER])  FEEE
EA(THBGHER ) MRE - ZFEHE
BTSRRI T B B R P RS 5 LT AR AV iE
AEBHEXREERAGOI(F622%) 8
WEME -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF+—_A=1+—HIFFE

() EAFIREEBIEBUBRE
% B

A

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and
revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA that are relevant to its
operations and effective for its accounting year beginning on 1
January 2015:

Amendment to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 (Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle)

The amendment clarifies how the gross carrying amount and
the accumulated depreciation/amortisation are treated where
an entity uses the revaluation model.

Amendment to HKAS 24 (Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle)

The amendment clarifies how payments to entities providing
key management personnel services are to be disclosed. This
amendment had no effect on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Amendment to HKFRS 8 (Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle)

The amendment requires disclosure of the judgements made
by management in applying the aggregation criteria to
operating segments, and clarifies that reconciliations of the
total of the reportable segments’ assets to the entity’s assets
are required only if the segment assets are reported regularly.
These clarifications had no effect on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Amendment to HKFRS 13 (Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle)

The amendment clarifies that the portfolio exception in HKFRS
13 — allowing an entity to measure the fair value of a group of
financial assets and financial liabilities on a net basis — applies
to all contracts (including non-financial) within the scope of
HKAS 39/HKFRS 9. This had no effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ —FE—AF+_A=1+—HIFFE

The Group has not early applied new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2015. The directors anticipate that
the new and revised HKFRSs will be adopted in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements when they become effective.
The Group is in the process of assessing, where applicable, the
potential effect of all new and revised HKFRSs that will be
effective in future periods but is not yet in a position to state
whether these new and revised HKFRSs would have a material
impact on its results of operations and financial position.

List of New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments'
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers'
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative?
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation?
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements?
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle?

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with
earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with
earlier application permitted.

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (b) EHEMENRKRERZHT REHE
I EBMEREER
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R RRERT AU MESE
A - EEEMIA] RIEFT BB
HEE R ERERNAEE R E B
BMER R - AERE DA (@)
P i A AR SR AR A R 2 3 AT S s fg
AIEEMBHRELN 2 EETYE B
) AR RE UL BT R] RARIERT BB R
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RNBRERTE -

SRMEERERZH T REETE
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AERBHREERN O FERPANOSMA
F155

EHetELE 1R BEHEN
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ERSCEid )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/\‘/T\

B MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ —FE—HF+_A=1+—HIFFE

(c) Amendments to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange

The Stock Exchange in April 2015 released revised Appendix
16 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities in relation to
disclosure of financial information in annual reports that are
applicable for accounting periods ending on or after 31
December 2015, with earlier application permitted. The
Company has adopted the amendments resulting in changes
to the presentation and disclosures of certain information in
the consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise in the
accounting policies below (e.g. land and buildings, derivative
financial assets/liabilities, financial assets/liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgements or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/\\/T\

B SRR R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ —FE—AF+_A=1+—HIFFE

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has